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GUAM LAND USE COMMISSION

Chairman John Z. Arroyo Commissioner Tae 8. Ch
Vice Chairman Victor F. Cruz Commissioner Hardy T.I. Vy
Commissioner Conchita D. Bathan

Michael J.B. Borja, Execulive Secretary
Nicolas E. Toft, Legal Counse! (OAG)

AGENDA

Regular Meeting
Thursday, August 24, 2017, 2017 at 1:30 p.m.

Department of Land Management Conference Room

590 S. Marine Corps Drive, 3 Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning
[As advertised in the Guam Daily Post on August 17t and August 227, 2017)

I. Notation of Attendance [ ]Quorum [ 1 No Quorum
. Approval of Minutes
e GLUC Regular Meeting of Thursday, August 10, 2017
M. Old or Unfinished Business

A. Guam Wanfang Construction Ltd.; six-month status report and continuation of an Order to
Show Cause on the conditions of approval for a previously approved Height Variance for
the Pago Bay Resort, in the Municipality of Yona, under Application No. 2015-29B.
[Continuation from GLUC hearing of June 22, 2017]

Case Planner: Celine Cruz

B. The Applicant, ARINC {subsidiary of Rockwell Collins) represented by Daniel D. Swavely;
technical amendment request for Leo Palace Resort's Planned District Development
{PDD) to accommodate a temporary aviation communication receiving tower, on a portion
of Tract 2511 (portion of Lot 177-4-1NEW), in the Municipality of Yona. [Continuation -
GLUC Hearing of August 10, 2017]

Case Planner: Frank Taitano

IV. New Business
Zone Variance

C. The Applicant, Docomo Pacific, Inc.; request for a Height Zone Variance for the
construction of a 100-foot telecommunication monopole tower, on Lot 4, Block 2, in the
Municipality of Talofofo, in an “R-1” (Single Family Dwelling) zone, under Application No.
2016-52.

Case Planner: Frank Taitano
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V. Administrative & Miscellaneous Matters

Status Report

D. The Applicant, BME Sons, Inc.; status report for the operation of an existing contractor's
yard, on Lot 10, Tract 293, in the Municipality of Mangilao, in an “A" (Rural) zone, under
Application No. 2002-30C.

Case Planner: Penmer Gulac

Tentative Development Plan

E. The Applicant, City Hill (Guam), Ltd. represented by Setiadi Architects LLC; request for
extension of time for a previously approved amended Tentative Development Plan for the
Guam Plaza Hotel, on Lot 5058-R3NEW-1, in the Municipality of Tamuning, in an “H"
{Hotel/Resort) zone, under Application No. 1996-60B/C.

Case Planner: Frank Taitano

VI. Adjournment



GUAM LAND USE COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Department of Land Management Conference Room, 3" Floor ITC Bldg., Tamuning
Thursday, August 24, 2017  1:30 p.m. to 4:10 p.m.

l. Notation of Attendance

Chairman Arroyo called the regular meeting of the Guam Land Use Commission for Thursday,
August 24, 2017 to order at 1:30 p.m., noting a quorum.

Present were: Chairman John Arroyo, Vice Chairman Victor Cruz, Commissioner Conchita
Bathan, Commissioner Tae Oh, Commissioner Hardy Vy, Legal Counsel Nicolas Toft, Guam
Chief Planner Marvin Aguilar, Planning Staff Frank Santos, Penmer Gulac and Recording
Secretary Cristina Gutierrez.

[it was noted that Mr. Michael Borja, Executive Secretary will be late for today’'s GLUC
meeting.]

Chairman Arroyo the agenda that is before us today, does anybody want to make any changes
to the agenda or the order of the agenda? [None noted]

Il. Approval of Minutes

Chairman_Arroyo first item on the agenda is the approval of the August 10", 2017 minutes.
You've all had an opportunity to read them; | will entertain a motion.

Commissioner Bathan makes a motion to approve the GLUC regular meeting minutes of August
10, 2017, subject to minor corrections and/or edits that will be submitted to the Recording
Secretary by close of business today.

Chairman Arroyo there is a motion to approve the minutes subject to edits. Second?

Vice Chairman Cruz seconds the motion.

Chairman Arroyo seconded by the Vice Chairman; any discussion? [None]

Allin favor of the motion say “aye” [Chairman Arroyo, Vice Chairman Cruz, Commissioner Bathan,
Commissioner Oh and Commissioner Vy], all opposed say “nay.”

[Motion passed; 5 ayes, 0 nay]

llil. Old or Unfinished Business

Status Report/Order to Show Cause

A. The Applicant, Guam Wanfang Construction Ltd.; six-month status report and continuation
of an Order to Show Cause on the conditions of approval for a previously approved Height
Variance for the Pago Bay Resort, in the Municipality of Yona, under Application No. 2015-
29B. [Continuation of GLUC Meeting of June 22, 2017]

GLUC Regular Meeting Minutes
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Chairman Arroyo asked of Chief Planner Aguilar if he had anything to add since the last meeting.

Marvin Aguilar (Chief Planner) responded that this is a continuation from the last meeting, and
that his last report to the Commission dated June 16, 2017 stands.

Chairman Arroyo noted for the record the following documents; letter addressed to the
Commission dated August 22, 2017 and signed by Fong Wu (for full content/context, please refer
to Exhibit 1) and a status update dated May 2, 2017 which an addendum to the August 7, 2017
report submitted by the applicant (for full content/context, please refer to Exhibit 2).

[Commission takes a few minutes to review the documents received.]

Chairman Arroyo the letter is basically a re-affirmation of Pago Bay Laguana Resort's
commitment to reintern the ancient remains found in the Laguana Resort's property which was a
condition of their NOA (Notice of Action) for that particular project and it was also a condition of
the NOA tfor the Wanfang project and some information on the sites; and lastly, an update of the
itemns of the NOA relative to the Wanfang project and where we are with that.

Any comments or questions on what we received? [None noted]

Chairman Arroyo gave a summary of what had transpired at the last meeting. There was a
question whether or not the applicant had submitted their request for a permit extension on time
and whether or not the Commission could proceed with entertaining that application as the
applicant had not submitted it on time; and, Legal Counsel was asked to provide the Commission
with an opinion on that. We met after that, but you were not here and so we decided to continue
this so we could ask for you to review your opinion with us and give us your guidance.

Nick Toft (Legal Counsel) explained that the issue presented is kind of a two-pronged issue.
The first issue was whether or not the Board could deliberate on whether or not to grant Wanfang
an extension on their requirement to obtain a clearing/grading permit within a year of receipt of
their Notice of Action given the language of Executive Order 96-26, Section 5. The applicant
submitted their request for an extension on May 2" (2017) prior to the expiration of the one-year
period, but not in time for GLUC to perform any action upon it; deadline was May 10" (2017) and
the Board did not meet until after that. So, the first issue was whether the Board has jurisdiction
to consider the request at all. And | believe it does under, oddly enough, the same case logic that
is presented in the special proceedings case that was the appeal of the original approval of the
NOA that Save Southern Guam filed. It is a little bit difficult to understand the legal distinction; but
basically, the default is that a Board is allowed to consider something post expiration unless there
is some sort of legislative intent or this case executive intent that is an executive order to divest
the Board of the ability to decide it. Because there is no language in the Executive Order that
says after this time the Board has no authority to hear it, it falls under what is called a claims
processing rule. So, the Board has the ability to examine this.

And at this point, | will mention that there were prior incidences that the Guam Land Use
Commission has considered an extension of NOAs after the deadlines had expired. One was
August 11, 2016, it was FC Benavente, Planners and Dr. and Mrs. Alegria. They were told that
there NOA was null and void because it had expired and their request came after the deadline
had passed. They were told an NOA with new dates had to be obtained; but, because it was a
project in Tumon and it had a tentative development plan they were toid they didn’t need a new
public hearing so a vote for a new NOA was immediately taken and it passed.
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The other time that this occurred was back in 2011; there was a project called Takanc Towers
who had applied for a height variance in Tamuning, and their request was received on the day of
the expiration, but the Board considered their request. When they deliberated they noted that the
developer was having difficulties with GWA regarding the infrastructure and that contributed to
their inability to get a grading/building permit so they unanimously approved the motion to grant
the extension even though that meeting was similar to this, two months after the expiration of the
NOA.

So, if Guam Land Use Commission has the ability to vote upon the extension this is what's to be
considered. This oddly enough is paralleling that court case where the remedies available for
failure to meet the statutory deadline. So, there are two options available, two equitable doctrines
that would apply; equitable tolling and equitable estoppel. If you have read the Court decision
these are the exact same things that the Court examined when Save Southern Guam'’s petition
to Court was initially considered untimely. Equitable tolling happens when there is deception or
mis-representation by the other party; and that didn’t happen in the court case and | don't that this
has happened here. | don't think the Board has actively mislead Wanfang at all. The other
possibility is equitable estoppel. Equitable estoppel can be invoked if Wanfang’s failure to meet
the filing deadline was the consequence of actions that Guam Land Use Commission should have
understood that would cause them to miss the deadline. | believe that, not last year, but two
hearings ago that they had some ability to get the grading/building permit. The primary reason
and | think should they be allowed to present any additional reasons, but the primary reason was
the delay in approving the language of the demolition bond which Wanfang contended had to
occur prior to securing of the permits.

So, what | would suggest that the Board do after they're given an opportunity to present, is to take
a vote on whether or not this constituted a sufficient reason for Wanfang to fail to secure an
extension prior to the deadline; and if it did, the Board should vote to approve the extension, and
if not, the Board should vote to deny the extension. And in that case, the NOA will have expired
and then the Land Use Commission and Wanfang can examine the possibility of creating a new
NOA. However, if that does happen that would fall under the new hybrid commission rules. So, |
don't think a vote could be taken immediately upon that.

Are there any questions regarding that analysis?
Commissioner Oh just so that this is clear; you are saying is if there is sufficient reason for

Wanfang's failure to secure an extension prior to the deadline and if there is sufficient reason then
the Board can vote. That is what you're saying basically.

Nick Toft yes, but you can vote regardless because | believe it hasn't been divested of the ability
to vote just because the deadline has passed. But, one important note to clarify that is that it can't
be just any reason. It has to be a reason that Land Management and/or the Land Use Commission
kind of contributed to that delay. Something that our offices did that impacted their ability to secure
the permits.

Commissioner Oh regardless of that we can still vote on it, that is what you're saying.

Nick Toft yes.

Vice Chairman Cruz you were mentioning that basically whether this Commission talking about
what if any had transpired there would be for us to cause their delay in getting their permit. Is that
correct?
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Nick Toft the Commission or Department of Land Management or some sort of GovGuam based
reason.

Vice Chairman Cruz if you take it out of Department of Land Management and you take it to the
other regulatory agencies that they get clearance and for some reason within that it caused them
their delay to get the required permit be it grading or any other kind of permit and they submitted
it before the NOA expired then we could actually decide on that at the same time.,

Nick Toft | would say it is a simple one vote system that you approve the permit because you
believe that the equitable estoppel has been met in this instance or you deny it because you
believe it has not been met.

Vice Chairman Cruz the reason | ask is because there is a clearing process for getting a permit.
| believe it cleared Land Management before the expiration date?

Marvin Aquilar it cleared Land Management before the expiration date.

Vice Chairman Cruz that is what | want to basically put into the record that if there is anything to
say that we the Commission or Land Management is causing it then it's out on the table that it
could be or might be another government clearing authority.

Chairman Arroyo any other questions. [None noted] You had indicated that the primary reason
for their inability to get the permit was because we needed more language for the demolition
bonding.

Nick Toft that was my understanding.

Chairman Arroyo [ think there were five {5) reasons, but | think that was one of the major ones.
I would like to open the floor to the applicant. If there is anything more you would like to say or
anything else you would like to add that occurred since the last time we had met. If you could
mention your name for the record.

Barbara Burkhardt (representing Guam Wanfang Construction) explained that since the last
meeting, they have had construction management discussions about moving forward on the
development. The developer is eager to move forward on the project. She added that they take
very seriously what they call a pre-requisite and find that a grading permit is a good pre-requisite
for them. It indicates that they have all the agency approvals in order; and, in their discussions
with EPA in regard to the grading permit, there are a lot of good things that are happening. They
take very seriously that every agency signs off on the grading permit, and that Land Management
already reviewed it, and that they are in process with all the other agencies.

» Ms. Burkhardt the letter that was given to the Commission was a commitment from the
developer of the subdivision and their commitment to the reinternment of the remains
regardless of how what happens at today's meeting.

> Bonding is part of their ability to move forward. Department of Public Works will need evidence
of the bond before signing off on the permit. She added that the Commission’s comments are
needed so that they can move forward on the bond and complete the grading permit process.
With that it would be a clear go to their group and construction manager to go forward with
the project.
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Chairman_Arroyo the last time the Commission met, a list was given of five issues that had
prevented you from applying for the permit within the one-year period, and a number of them was
discussed. Chairman Arroyo expressed that if they had anticipated that some of these issues
would have caused them problems in obtaining the permit, could they have submitted the request
for an extension earlier than what they had actually done.

The other issue was the language on the demolition bond. You had indicated that you could not
move forward with the permit because you didn’t have the language. Have you received the
comments?

Barbara Burkhardt we still have not received the Commission’s comments.

Chairman Arroyo but you said you could not do it because you did not have the language, but
you did submit an application for a permit in spite of that.

Barbara Burkhardt explained that getting a permit is a three-step practice. First, is with DPW
and they check all the documents to see if they appear to be correct. The second step is what |
will refer to as the ARC agencies (Application Review Committee); in the case of the grading
permit, not all the agencies review that. That review can take a long time and if they don't have a
clear path to approve something you need to work with them on that, and Parks and Rec and
EPA are our high priority reviews on those. Then after the ARC reviews are finished then it goes
to DPW and they do their in-house review which could take two to eight weeks. And the final
signature is the Director who signs off on at. At that point, he will need to know that an extension
has been granted and he needs to show evidence of the bond. So, we have time during that
process. It will sit on the Director's desk until the bond is presented to him and that is a
Government of Guam requirement to provide a demolition bond. That is how we see the process,
and we didn't feel that there was any risk in submitting and getting the process going.

Commissioner Bathan how many agencies have signed off on your permit application.

Barbara Burkhardt responded that they have signatures from the Department of Land
Management and Survey, EPA and Department of Parks and Rec who is taking their time; | am
not clear if they're going to sign in because we haven't reinterned yet. The other requirement is
that we have an archeologist to be on call during construction.

Commissioner Oh asked of the applicant if they had acquired a building permit or are they still
in the process.

Barbara Burkhardt responded that they have not received a building process and they were stili
in the processing of obtaining one.

[Discussion ensues on the agencies who have or have not signed off on the applicant’'s permit.]

Commissioner Oh read through the Commission Brief prepared by the Chief Planner dated June
16, 2017, and it lists three reasons for the delay. First, the extended review by DPR to obtain the
permit for the reburial of the remains which appears to have taken six months to present. The
second is the ongoing litigation in court to which ruling has yet to occur and causing a default on
AES to hold design and engineering work at fifty-percent. And the third, reconsideration of
construction methodology. Are there additional reasons?
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Barbara Burkhardt yes, but the fourth was in the paragraph ahead of the three reasons which
was a request to provide comments on the bond language.

Commissioner Oh going back to the logic of did GovGuam delay the project in any way. Number
one talks about DPR reviewing the reburial program, and you have engaged DPR since the
beginning of this project.

Barbara Burkhardt we've been in discussion with DPR since March of 2016.

Commissioner Oh second, is the court ruling that has nothing to do with GovGuam.

Barbara Burkhardt it’s the Attorney General; it seems to me it is a GovGuam or court issue which
is under GovGuam.

Commissioner Oh it's a litigation issue with Save Southern Guam.

Barbara Burkhardt it is out there but we don't feel risk, but it is something out there.

Commissioner Oh | don't think this contributes to the delay in obtaining a permit.

Chairman Arroyo there really has not been a stay on the project.

Barbara Burkhardt there is not a stay, but it is a concern. Our construction team and developer
locked at that very hard, and | wrote that because it was something to consider. She further added
that it was not a substantial reason or a high risk on their part.

Commissioner Oh the third is the reconsideration of construction methodology; | don't think that
has anything to do with delay on the part of GovGuam.

Barbara Burkhardt no, but added that H2 workers are important to Guam and that the Governor
is going to Washington, DC to address the H2 problem to remedy the issue.

Commissioner Oh reiterated his point of did this issue cause the company to delay the
acquisition of a permit due to this issue being the responsibility of GovGuam.

Barbara Burkhardt GovGuam is involved in the H2; the remedy on the H2 and the ability to get
them on Guam. This is an issue for private, GovGuam, military; anyone who is building.
Unfortunately, the H2 issue has not been resolved at this time, and | trust that Core Tech .... many
people have been involved in the H2 at this point. At this point, we want to get the grading permit
and we would like the H2 issue to be resolved in September, and as of October 1 our project
looks very viable with those two things in place. And so, we ask for your assistance in the grading
permit and the issues that we have there and what we need to comply to get the grading permit;
what the Director of DPW needs in order to approve it and so we ask for that. And that is our
construction management critical path the two key milestones at this point, and we appreciate
your consideration of the extension.

Commissioner Oh the fourth was the demolition bond.

Barbara Burkhardt correct, and that is one that is in the Commission’s hands to give us the
language so that it can be brought to the bonding company and comply with that portion.
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Commissioner Oh what was the exact issue with the language on the demolition bond.

Barbara Burkhardt our attorney drafted a proposed language for the bond and the process is
that the Commission needs to provide its comments and if there are no disagreements on the
comments then it goes to the bonding company and get the bond; but comments are needed. We
can't take our proposal to the bonding company because they have risk...they can't bond it without
the comments of the GLUC. This process was very clearly stated in the NOA.

Commissioner Bathan comments that she understand that they are waiting on the
Commission’s comments on the language for the demolition bond, and asked of Ms. Burkhardt
when was the last time a follow up was made with Land Management or GLUC regarding the
comments needed for the bond.

Barbara Burkhardt replied, “in terms of Land Management?”

Commissioner Bathan Land Management or GLUGC, it's the same, and | am talking about before
May 2",

Barbara Burkhardt | made comment at the February 23 2017 meeting, and it was not
commented on.

Marvin_Aquilar the comments were particularly and directed to our Legal Counsel; and
unfortunately, | believe there was a switch in our Legal Counsel at that time and beyond our
control.

Commissioner Oh have we had any issues with the language in the demolition bond because it
is my understanding that we issued out this exact statement to other projects; restrictions to other
projects also, is this correct? [Mr. Aguilar responds, “yes.”] Did we ever have an issue with any
of the other projects?

Marvin Aquilar in this case it is a demolition bond. The applicant and their legal (and correct me
if | am wrong) people had a difficult time trying to define or understand what a demolition bond
was or how to put it together. Any comments | made would be my opinion, and so it was deferred
to Legal Counsel.

[Discussion ensues on the demolition bond]
Commissioner Oh when was the inquiry for clarification on the demolition bond submitted.

Barbara Burkhardt it was submitted on December 227, 2016. | am not faulting the Board in any
way. Our developer looks at that and wants an indication that the Commission can move on the
bond and close that issue. They look at professionally and something on the critical path that is
important to the company.

Commissioner Oh for clarification, is the demolition bond a requirement to get a building or
grading permit.

Barbara Burkhardt responded that the way they had read the NOA it required a demolition bond.
Qur scope of work on the grading permit is to put in the silk fences, putin a large temporary storm
water pond and an adjacent flow over pond. So, rather than leave this pond and the fence in
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perpetuity if we stop work we would need to restore the site to its original state should the project
not move forward, and that is the intent of the bond.

Chairman Arroyo Commissioner Oh, what it is is a special condition of the NOA that the bond
be in place prior to them moving forward with the permitting process.

Vice Chairman Cruz was any other permit acquired for any work done on the property because
| have seen work being done on the property.

Barbara Burkhardt the only other permit applied was for the park and we received a full permit
for the park and pretty much completed at this time. This is located on the subdivision property
not on ours.

Vice Chairman Cruz incorporating the first project into this project in the NOA. The burial issue
is relating to the first project which is totally different owners.

Barbara Burkhardt but it is noted in the Notice of Action for this project. The first permit was for
the burial park and the second permit is for a grading permit.

Vice Chairman Cruz what you had just explained is that you received a grading permit, but the
NOA for the first part of the interment is somehow tied into this property that basically restricts
this project from obtaining the required permit. if they would have separated the issue of the
interment from the first project from this project, | don't think there would have been much of a
problem getting the permit.

Barbara Burkhardt clarified that they did delay dropping the grading permit because they wanted
the approval of Parks and Recreation to approve the location of the park; that approval was
obtained on April 24", 2017. It all happened concurrently in those last eight weeks before May
2nd,

Marvin Aquilar Mr. Vice Chair, are you asking that since a grading permit was secured for a
project not on the same property and noted on the Notice of Action and a clearing/grading permit
has been secured on behalf of the Notice of Action?

Vice Chairman Cruz that seems to be one way of looking at it. These are two separate properties,
two separate owners, and somehow it was put together into this property and caused all the
issues with permits and time and everything.

Chairman Arroyo | would like to go back and remind everybody why we wanted the burial site to
be completed because it was a significantly past due item of the NOA for the previous project.
And there was an indication that there was common ownership of the two projects at the time.
So, we wanted to make sure that the remains go interred, and we were using this project as
leverage to make sure that happened. The intent of the Executive Order is a grading project for
that particular project as opposed to some other project. | believe if we start thinking about getting
a permit for some other property as opposed to the property that is to be developed, | think we're
going to start setting some precedence that we don't necessarily want to do.

Commissioner Bathan the permit has to be tied in with the lot number.

Chairman Arrovo | believe so; that is the intent, at least to my understanding of the executive
order.
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Vice Chairman Cruz | agree to that it's just that .... for me the issue to come out was did they
apply on time and there is a process. With a project of this magnitude it will take some time to get
through the permitting process.

Chairman_Arroyo | liked the way you dissected the reasons for not being able to obtain the
grading permit, and it seemed like the only issue that could have caused the delay on the part of
the Government of Guam is the language in the demolition bond.

Commissioner Oh but at the same time, my thought process is for a project of this magnitude
and you're talking about once you submit an application for a grading permit you are going to
expect three to six months on the process of getting that. | don't think right now that they are at
any point near the process where this demalition bond has to be clarified ---

Barbara Burkhardt (interjecting) | have to disagree with that. For you to assert that our building
process and our ability to get that permit etcetera, is not include the demolition bond. Our
construction management group, my experience concludes that statement and it is a statement
that we have to take acceptation to that we do need to be able to apply for a demolition bond
required by the Government of Guam by the GLUC and we do need this as part of our process to
get the approval from DPW Director and do work on this project.

Commissioner Oh the point was, yes, there was a delay getting the permit but it didn’t delay the
intent of applying for the permit.

Barbara Burkhardt that is correct. But, you have to apply and you have to receive. We are
coming up on we need to receive the permit. A reasonable time is passing, and on our
construction management schedule we allowed for eight to twelve weeks and we are now going
into sixteen weeks.

Commissioner Oh what | am uncomfortable with and going back to the point of initiating the
application permit process; your NOA expired sometime in May. Is that correct?

Barbara Burkhardt May 10", 2017.

Commissioner Oh May 10", and you submitted your application for grading permit on what day?
[Ms. Burkhardt responded May 2™, 2017] That is what bothers me.

Barbara Burkhardt what bothers me is that we worked very hard to get that interment approval,
and we did not anticipate how long that would take. And we take the interment very seriously, and
| will take responsibility for this, | prioritized it. We would have liked to be able to drop that permit
on the park much sooner, but we were unable to. | think that the unfortunate thing is the deadline
set by the NOA at first seemed to appear to be reasonable and professionally able to comply.

Chairman Arroyo as far as the park is concerned, and | commend you for the work that you have
done and the progress that has occurred so far and your commitment to continue to make sure
that this comes ahead especially since you were not part of the original development. |1 don't
remember how many years had passed since the NOA was issued. It really it isn't your fault that
the prior project developers allowed it [inaudible due to excess noise]. Unfortunately, you ended
up having to pick up the ball for that, and so | think if there is any blame to be made with respect
to bonding and meeting that requirement as part of this NOA, it has to go back to the original
project owners who allowed it to languish. 1 don't think we can fault the government or any
agencies of the government for not being able to get a permit issued in time because it simply
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would have fell into the lap of the prior developers who chose not to do anything, more or less to
ignore that particular condition of the NOA.

Nick (Toft}, | was going to ask the question regarding the level of responsibility with respect to
requesting an extension. Let's say we agree that we did play a part in their inability to get the
permit because the language of the demolition bond had not been transmitted to them. A project
of this magnitude, size and publicity that it had gotten is there some level of responsibility on part
of the developer to be mare proactive knowing that we talked about how long it takes to get a
bond for the grading and the length of time it was taking to some response back from us on the
demolition bond; kind of the responsibility is placed on the shoulder of the developer to be
proactive in requesting an extension more than eight (8) days prior to the expiry (which was May
10™). Where is their obligation in being proactive in getting a request to the Commission eight
days prior of the expiry date?

Nicolas Toft point of clarification, the estoppel argument it can be meant for both if their failure
to meet the deadline and the way the deadline works (the May 10™ deadline) is whether they get
the permit or they get the extension and so it is not just one or the other. And it's if that was the
consequence because of actions from the government that we should have understand what
caused them to miss the deadline. That is the language the Commission needs to use in its vote
to decide whether estoppel is at play here. So, it doesn't necessarily state that it is unilaterally
because of GovGuam; is it a consequence because of GovGuam’s actions that we shouid have
known that they would have missed the deadline.

Chairman Arroyo consequence of GovGuam’s actions that we would have known that they
would have missed the deadline.

Nicolas Toft | just want to make sure we decide on the correct legal language when we do take
a vote,

Commissioner Oh | don't think that there are any consequences that we knew prior that would
delay this project from getting a building permit. | think all of us to a certain degree didn’t feel that
the current conditions would limit them or would delay the acquisition of the grading permit. They
had a year to do so. And if we knew ahead of time that all these conditions would have delayed
them, | think we would have been reasonable to either give them more time or if the applicant
comes back to us and asks for an extension and the Board would have thought about that and
perhaps considered that and taken that into consideration. The problem is that the NOA has
expired as of May 10", and [ think that the Chairman made a good point and the point was that a
project of this magnitude it would have been a lot more responsible for the applicant to come
before the Commission as ask for an extension and not put us in a bind as Legal Counsel had
mentioned in our earlier hearing that whether we grant this or not grant this we are pretty
much....we lose, lose in either situation. Let's say we do approve this and extend this | am sure
there will be comments and actions from Save Southern Guam or if we don't approve it then there
will be appropriate actions from the applicant. Looking at the merits of the situation it would have
been a lot more reasonable that the applicant should have come to us prior to the deadline and
ask for the extension if they were responsible, and that is the point | am trying to get across.

Chairman Arroyo Commissioner Vy, | know you are coming into this half-way. Do you have any
thoughts or comments?

Commissioner Vv | have no comments; however, | am processing all of the information and valid
points have been made.
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Vice Chairman Cruz moving forward and regardless of who it favors, how long would it take you
to get the grading permit.

Barbara Burkhardt | am looking at October 1%, October 2™. In regard to DPR there are two
conditions in their comment. The first is in regard to the burial of ancient remains and the second
requirement is that we have a contract with an archeologist, that we have a plan to do the
demolition, construction under the supervision or overview of an archeologist. We are covered on
the second condition we have hired an archeologist and we have a plan to submit to DPR and
the first part is the reburial of the remains.

Vice Chairman Cruz so you are telling me that between now and October, you are going to get
DPR and you are going to get everything that you said and you will be done by then and get a
permit?

Barbara Burkhardt | have no contro! over how quickly people ..... | would hope for October 2™,
This permit is not very complicated and it should move in the eight to twelve-week timeframe, we
are now going into sixteen possible twenty weeks. | think we are very close.

Commissioner Oh for the record, | was just received a letter from, | didn’t open it | just saw the
title; it is a letter from Save Southerm Guam, and just so everyone knows | did not read or open
the letter. Just one more thing. I've thought about this project a lot and considered all the available
options, and me being a private developer ... as a Commissioner, as a Board member, we have
to look at the situation, look at the viability of the project and also determine if this developer will
be a responsible developer. If you look at the intent behind the demolition bond you can probably
see that it's due to the four towers at Oka Point which was abandoned for the longest time. We
don't want to run into those types of situations again. | feel, and I've had to do some soul searching
and go back to my recollection on this this whole project, and | realized that there were a lot of
things that bothered me in the beginning. But as time progressed, there are additional items that
are bothering me. | have to come up with an opinion as a Commissioner whether this project will
go through or whether this project will fall through. Initially, | understand this project to be Pago
Bay Marina Resort and now it's Pago Bay Ocean Resort. There are certain items that did bother
me; the other item was the financially side of things. We've asked for some type of financial
information, and we did receive it but it took how long, six months, upon approval of the NOA. As
a Commission member, we really have to consider whether this project is being developed by
someone responsible, and | will leave that decision to every Commission member. | don't have
too much confidence.

Chairman Arroyo any other comments [none noted]. | am ready for a vote now; and the question
is whether or not to issue a one-year extension of the NOA, and | think the justification for a
decision has been made very clear. Does everybody understand the reasons why we would or
would not vote in favor of their request. [No comments noted] | am ready for a motion.

Vice Chairman Cruz you mentioned a one-year extension for the project. Whatever means for
them to get it and | guess issuance for the grading permit requirement?

Chairman Arroyo vyes, it's issuance of the grading permit. That is requirement of the executive
order. So, we do have the ability to grant two, one-year extensions. So, if we do grant a one-year
extension now, today, and they're not able to get the grading permit issued within a year of May
10", then then can come back and request for the second extension that we are authorized to
grant given justification.
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Commissioner Oh or a new NOA can be issued.

Chairman Arroyo as Legal Counsel said, we cannot do that today because this then becomes
subject to the hybrid commission and they would have to come back.

Vice Chairman Cruz if that route is taken does the process start over.

Chairman Arroyo yes, because it would be a new Commission. It would no longer be just us it
would include the empanelment of the hybrid commission.

Commissioner Bathan they would have to go through the ARC, public hearing, etc.

Chairman Arroyo | believe so because it is a new Commission.

Marvin Aquilar a significant change in the project itself, it changes from what it was approved for
...the whole process is an information gathering process.

Chairman Arroyo | think we could address that issue if and once we get there. | don’t want to
stray too far from the business of today.

Vice Chairman Cruz | will make a motion to provide a one-year extension based on today’s
discussion, and that is the issuance of a grading permit only and not to the extent of using the
demolition bond as another issue to be brought in should there be any future discussion.

Commissioner Bathan but that is a condition of the NOA.

Vice Chairman Cruz they will have to work on that. Let me ask Legal Counsel; does getting the
grading permit that it require the demolition bond?

Nicolas Toft under the language of the NOA, 1 believe it did (I don’t have it in front of me). But if
I recall from two hearings ago, | believe that that was established that part of the NOA stated that
they had to acquire the demolition bond before acquiring the clearing and/or grading permit.

[Discussion ensues on the language of the Notice of Action with regards to the demolition bond.
Chief Planner explains that it is as it relates to the actual construction. Mr. Aguilar added that this
was the language of the actual Notice of Action; clearing, grading, building permits anything that
is related to the construction of the structure.]

Vice Chairman Cruz how would that be worded into a motion?

Chairman Arroyo you can withdraw your motion and make a new motion. Legal Counsel is
correct; it is condition number eight if you look at the NOA.

Vice Chairman Cruz | withdraw my motion, and | would like to make a new motion. The new
motion is to extend for one (1) year in order for them to get a grading permit.

Chairman Arroyo there is a motion to grant the extension of one (1) year to obtain the grading
permit. Do | have a second on the motion?

Commissioner Vy | second.
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Chairman Arroyo any discussion on the motion? [none noted] On the motion, all in favor say
“aye” [Vice Chair Cruz, Commissioner Vy and Commissioner Bathan], all opposed say “nay”
[Chairman Arroyo and Commissioner Oh].

[Motion to grant the applicant’'s request for a one-year extension was passed with a vote
of 3-ayes, 2-nays.]

Chairman Arroyo next item on the agenda ---

B. The Applicant, ARINC (subsidiary of Rockwell Collins) represented by Daniel D. Swavely;
technical amendment for Leo Palace’s Planned District Development (PDD) to
accommodate a temporary aviation communication receiving tower, on a portion of Tract
2511 (portion of Lot 177-4-1NEW), in the Municipality of Yona. [Continuation — GLUC
hearing of August 10, 2017]

Chairman_Arroyo the reason why we could not forward with that meeting was because there
wasn’t anybody here to represent the Leo Palace, and | guess Dan that is what you are doing
Now.

Daniel Swavely that is correct.

Chairman Arroyo Chief Planner, is there anything more to add than what was discussed last
time.

Marvin Aquilar just to note that that concern was brought before Mr. Swavely, and he submitted
a new application with Leo Palace Resort as the applicant and representing accordingly.

Chairman Arroyo the representative of ARINC was here and sat through pretty much all of the
last meeting, and we didn't want him to walk away without having to say something for the time
he sat there. We had a pretty good lengthy discussion, and pretty much aware of what they are
intending to do. If you want to add to that ---

Daniel Swavely it is not necessary. It is just a technical amendment to move our tower from off
property to on property. It seems pretty minor (| hope). We are in a little bit of squeeze because
the lease hold property was sold and we need to get out of there, but we need rebuild somewhere
first and then move out.

Chairman Arroyo the area where this is going to be placed is the soccer field?

Daniel Swavely it is the existing soccer field and it is the least used of the five soccer fields.

Chairman Arroyo was the soccer field part of the original use of that plan for that particular area.

Daniel Swavely yes it was; it was in the originai 1988 planned district development master plan
for Lec Palace Resort, and this being a change of land use and it constitutes the need to explain
to the Commission and justify it so that the site for a new purpose.

Chairman Arroyo you are asking for an approval for a temporary use, and it is for six years with
the extension of another six years.
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Daniel Swavely that is what we are asking for. FAA's contract to Rockwell Collins operating on
Guam as ARINC is on six year increments, and it has started on the first six years and hope to
get the next six years.

Chairman Arroyo let’s say it goes out to twelve years and then after that it will revert to the soccer
field.

Daniel Swavely it will revert back to the soccer field unless other circumstances come to bear
and | would be before you to extend. All we know now is we have a contract for six with an option
for six.

Chairman Arroyo any other questions.
Vice Chairman Cruz no, it was well presented at the last meeting.

Marvin Aguilar reiterated that the division whole-heartedly supports this change in the master
plan, it made sense, and that we support this approach.

Daniel Swavely Mr. Chairman, | feel obligated also to share that in 1988, it's 2017 now, it's a big
operation out and things evolve. There are a couple of changes that the Leo Palace would like to
see in their operations and they involve this sort of change, this sort of technical amendment. It is
my feeling that if this is successful Lea Palace will ask for a couple more changes here and there.
So, you may be seeing me again on behalf of the Leo Palace.

Marvin Aquilar mentions for the record, receipt of revised application submitted by Mr. Swavely
dated August 16, 2017 as well as letter of authorization.

Chairman Arroyo if there aren't any questions or comments, | am ready to entertain a motion.
Commissioner Bathan Mr. Chairman, | would like to make a motion to approve the request for
a technical amendment for Leo Palace’s Planned District Development (PDD) to accommodate a
temporary aviation communication receiving tower, on a portion of Tract 2511 (portion of Lot 177-
4-1NEW), in the Municipality of Yona.

Chairman Arroyo there is a motion by Commissioner Bathan, is there a second.

Commissioner Oh second.

Chairman Arroyo seconded by Commissioner Oh. Any discussion on the motion [none noted]
On the motion, all in favor say “aye” [Chairman Arroyo, Vice Chair Cruz, Commissioners
Bathan, Oh and Vy], all opposed say “nay.”

[Motion passes unanimously; 5 ayes, 0 nay]
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New Business
Zone Variance

C. The Applicant, Docomo Pacific, Inc.; request for a Height/Use Zone Variance for the
construction of a 100-foot telecommunication monopole tower, on Lot 4, Block 2, in the
Municipality of Talofofo, in an “R-1" {(Single Family Dwelling) zone, under Application No.
2016-52. Case Planner: Frank Taitano

Commissioner Vy reminds Chairman Arroyo on his conflict of interest with Docomo Pacific as
previously stated that the last application’s hearing.

Chairman Arroyo and you have a conflict as well (addressing Commissioner Oh).

Commissioner Oh yes, one my companies is doing business with Docomo.

Chairman_Arroyo alright; it is okay for you to sit in as long as you do not participate in the
discussion. Commissioners Ch and Vy have indicated that there is a possibility of a conflict of
interest and would like to abstain from any discussion and voting on this request.

[Noted for the record - recused from Application No. 2016-52 were Commissioner Oh and
Commissioner Vy due to contlict of interests.]

Marvin Aquilar reads the staff report to include facts, purpose, public hearing, staff/analysis
discussion, recommendations and conditions. [For fuli content/context, refer to attached report.]

[Attachment C — Staff report dated August 14, 2017]
Chairman_Arroyo there were no objections at the public hearing? [Mr. Aguilar responded that
there were no objections.] And it appeared in the Minutes that the Mayor is also in support of the

request.

Commissioner Bathan was there a sign put up?

Frank Taitano (Case Planner) there is a sign up.

[Commission takes a ten minutes recess at 3:05 p.m. and reconvenes at 3:15 p.m.]

Chairman Arroyo we have a received a copy of the sign and looks to be in order. Any questions
of the staff before we move onto the applicant? [None noted] Please mention your names for the
record.

Diana Guzman with Contracts Engineering Department. | am the person who was in charge of
putting the application together.

Jun Baysac with Operations.

James Hoffman Chief Legal Officer for Docomo Pacific.

Chairman Arroyo | am assuming that this is the same kind of tower, different location as the one
we listened last time. You did alert us that you were coming back with one or two more or
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something like that. This falls under the previous Executive Order wherein they erect the tower
and then contact the Commission for approval.

Michael Borja (Executive Secretary) no, they submitted their application under the new
Executive Order. So, the tower has not been erected.

Chairman Arroyo okay, so please go ahead with your presentation.
Diana Guzman we are here on the final decision on the approval for the proposed Talofofo site

which is located down in the village of Talofofo. We have two more based on the new Executive
Order.

Commissioner Bathan the two that you mentioned under the new Executive Order, are they
located in residential areas.

Diana Guzman one more in YSengSong and one at the Yigo Church which will be located behind
the social hall.

Vice Chairman Cruz are they privately owned properties?

Diana Guzman YSengSong is privately owned and the one in Yigo is owned by the Archdiocese
of Agana.

Chairman Arroyo do you have anything you would like to add? [None] Any questions?

Commissioner Bathan there are two Executive Orders; the previous one which is 2001-36 it is
relative to the permitting of towers for wireless communications in non-residential zones. So, with
the new Executive Order 2016-01, it says the same thing non-residential. Why is the non-
residential specified? Is it allowable to build towers on residential zone?

Nicolas Toft the original purpose of it was for the development of towers on basically commercial
sites, commercial buildings things like that to increase coverage. It was not intended for residential
areas, and the current zoning laws already covered that as far as permitted structures.

Vice Chairman Cruz it can basically go up in any zone.

Nicolas Toft originally it couldn't go up in any zone other than commercial, M-1 or M-2. And so,
what the 2001 E.O. did was to open it up to agricultural and certain uses of (I believe) of R-2
where it was not in a residential area at the time.

Marvin Aguilar E.O. 2001-36 was an attempt to stand-up the industry, technology.

Vice Chairman Cruz when you select your sites you select it based on where you get the most
coverage.

Jun Baysac the site is selected based on the lack of coverage or poorr coverage in the area and
it needs to be covered.

James Hoffman site selection is very much based on maximizing the coverage radius for a
population such as Talofofo. We try our best to find a piece of property we can put the tower site
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up and it can broadcast a certain frequency and range to cover as many people as possible. The
higher up you are the more coverage.

Chairman Arroyo any other questions, comments.

Nicolas Toft is there any atternpt to contact owners of commercial zone store or agricultural zone
areas to try and see if agreements could be made with those areas?

Diana Guzman yes, there was an attempt.

Nicolas Toft my concern is that it is a double variance because the request is a variance from an
R-1 residential zone to the purpose that would be essentially be commercial or light industrial, but
also height in the middle of a village. And as we ran into with the billboard issue, variances have
to be looked at very carefully and they have to meet all four factors that were pointed out. The
exceptional circumstances or conditions applicable to the property involved that don't apply to
properties in the same area. That is what | am having issues with. It is not necessarily that that
piece land is unusable for R-1 purposes it's that they want to use it for light industrial purpose.

[Discussion ensues]

Chairman Arroyo what you are saying is that we should also consider a use variance as well.

Nicolas Toft | think it is both use and height.
Chairman Arroyo is this type of structure on a conditional use allowed in R-1?

Marvin Aquilar no; the only option would be to apply for a variance for use to deviate from what
is allowable.

Chairman Arrovyo the request is for both use and height variance? | thought it was just for height.
Michael Borja in the application it states both use and height.

Chairman Arroyo any other questions or comments? If not, | would like to open the floor for
public comment. Anybody out there who would like to provide any comments on this application.

Public Comments [Seeing none, Chairman Arroyo closed the public comment period]

Vice Chairman Cruz asked if the entire lot was being utilized for the tower to which Ms. Guzman
responded that they are leasing only a 25 x 30 portion of the lot.

Marvin Aguilar will this tower compromise any allowable uses with condition or without on that
property; can you still put a house on it.

Diana Guzman yes, you can. The tower will be placed in the back corner of the lot.
[Discussion ensues on lot size]

Commissioner Bathan is the tower made out of concrete?

Jun Baysac it is made of steel.
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Commissioner Bathan does it have to come down in case of a typhoon.

James Hoffman no; all of our towers are rated for 250 mph winds, they don’t come down. The
equipment hanging on the towers come down but the towers does not come down.

Commissioner Bathan it is made of steel; is there a need to change it over a period of time.

Jun Baysac we do regular maintenance. Our engineer will check the tower and if it is
recommended that the tower be changed, it will be changed.

Chairman Arroyo can you explain why this particular site. Is it absolutely essential that you have
to put the tower at this particular location.

Diana Guzman reason why this location was located was when we did our (inaudible) this is the
location where there was poor coverage; we received calls from our customers.

Chairman Arroyo so, you are saying in this location it is poor.

Diana Guzman there is poor coverage and this area and part of potentials.

Chairman Arroyo the last time you were here you explained that the site where the tower is at
does not necessarily service the area around the tower and that that area receives service by
some other tower (undecipherable) from that site because the signal kind of goes out that way
and doesn’t go down this way.,

Jun Baysac that location, the nearest adjustment site is at the Talofofo Golf Course near the
water reservoir and in that area, we do not have any cell sites and it is really weak in that area.
The next area would be in Ipan near Jeff's Pirate Cove.

Chairman Arroyo is there anywhere within a radius of less than a mile where the zone is
conforming that you could possible put this tower without degrading the signal.

Diana Guzman ! spoke with the Paulinos'; and this was the second choice, and they declined
because of possible future development on their property.

[Discussion ensues on other possible properties that are zoned agricultural to erect the
tower.]

Commissioner Bathan are you using fiber optics and if you use fiber optics would you still need
to put a tower.

Jun Baysac we use fiber optic, but there will still be a need to erect a tower.

James Hoffman the fiber cable does not cast a signal, the fiber cable just carries the information
traffic to and from.

Michael Borja all your equipment; pedestal, generator, electrical will be within the 25 x 30 which
will be sitting on the back corner of the lot, and you will have a driveway leading up to is. Does
this owner plan on using anything else on this property.

Diana Guzman a house can still be built and that was the intention of the property owner.
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Michael Borja the driveway, which is what you are leasing as well, | am assuming.

Diana Guzman that is access that the owner is providing for us.

[Discussion ensues]

Chairman_Arroyo there is absolutely no other place that you can put this, and still get the
intended use of the tower.

James Hoffman we believe that that is a correct assessment of the situation, yes.

Chairman Arroyo any other questions or comments [none noted]. | am ready for a motion.
Vice Chairman Cruz [ would like to approve the applicant’s request for a height and use zone for
Docomo Pacific, Inc. for the construction of a 100-foot telecommunication monopole tower on Lot
4, Block 2, in the municipality of Talofofo, in an “R-1" (Single Family Dwelling) zone, under
Application No. 2016-52 with conditions as recommended by staff.

Chairman Arroyo the motion to approve the height/use variance subject to the ARC conditions.

Commissioner Bathan second.

Chairman_Arroyo motion by Vice Chair Cruz, seconded by Commissioner Bathan. Any
discussion on the motion? [None noted]

On the motion, all in favor say “aye” [Chairman Arroyo, Vice Chairman Cruz and Commissioner
Bathan), all opposed say “nay.”

[Motion passed with a vote of 3-ayes, 0 nay, 2 recused)]
V. Administrative & Miscellaneous Matters

Status Report

D. The Applicant, BME Sons, Inc.; status report on the operation of an existing contractor's
yard, on Lot 10, Tract 293, in the Municipality of Mangilao, in an “A” (Rural) zone, under
Application No. 2002-30C. Case Planner: Penmer Gulac

Penmer Gulac this is the applicant’'s second status report as required by the approved Notice of
Action. Reads the Commission Brief. [For full content/context, refer to attached report.]

[Attachment D — Commission Brief dated August 16, 2017]
Chairman Arroyo questions for staff. [None noted]

Danny Natividad (Operations Manager for BME & Sons) on behalf of our President Mr. Bernie
Maranan, we are requesting your acceptance of our second annual reporting.

Chairman Arroyo any questions.
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